
Victorian Heritage Database Report Report generated 04/07/25

WINTERGARDEN

WINTERGARDEN SOHE
2008

WINTERGARDEN SOHE
2008

1 congregational church
mckillop street geelong front
view jun1995

h01173 plan h1173

Location

51 MCKILLOP STREET GEELONG, GREATER GEELONG CITY

Municipality



GREATER GEELONG CITY

Level of significance

Registered

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H1173

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO117

VHR Registration

April 18, 1996

Heritage Listing

Victorian Heritage Register

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - May 7, 1999

The Congregational Church was established in Geelong in 1850 and in 1853 a new building was planned for
McKillop Street to unite two congregations. The church was built in 1853-54 to a design by architect Benjamin
Backhouse. The prefabricated iron building attached to the rear of the former Congregational Church was
fabricated by Charles D Young and Co of Edinburgh. It was originally erected in 1863 on the Artillery Reserve in
Ryrie Street. It was re-erected in its present position in 1879 as the Gun Room behind the Orderly Room for the
Royal Victorian Volunteer Artillery Corps when the Congregational Chapel was converted for use as a Drill Hall.

The former chapel has architectural significance as one of the earliest surviving works of the architect Benjamin
Backhouse. The design of the church in the style of a meeting house with gallery reflects its relationship with the
nonconformist religions of England who had developed their own distinctive architectural style during the
eighteenth century. Although the building is in the Classical style, the facade features unusual proportions and
detail. The building has had a succession of occupants and a changing sequence of usage through the years, but
its original use as a place of worship can still be discerned.

The former chapel, an important example of a Congregational Church, is historically significant for its
associations with the Congregational denomination. Established in England during the Puritan movement of
dissent from the Church of England, the Congregational denomination was introduced to the colony of Victoria by
early settlers such as John Pascoe Fawkner and John Gardiner. The McKillop Street chapel was built to unite two
congregations and reflects the autonomy and factionalism which characterised nineteenth century
Congregationalism.

The prefabricated iron building attached to the rear of the former Congregational Church, demonstrates technical
accomplishment in the history of construction. The development of the galvanising process in the 1840s, the
fabrication of rolled sections of wrought iron from about 1850, and the use of grooved or fluted rollers to improve
the production of corrugated iron in 1844, enabled the construction of this prefabricated iron building. The building
demonstrates the innovative solutions provided by this technology to cope with the building shortages caused by
the gold rushes in Australia and California in the early 1850s.



The prefabricated building at the rear of the former Congregational Church is a rare example of a prefabricated
iron military building, and one of two known works of Charles D Young of Edinburgh extant in Victoria. Although
only part of the building survives, it is one of only a small number of prefabricated iron buildings of this
manufacturer remaining in the world.

[The information below is from the Geelong Region Historic Buildings and Objects Study]

The former Congregational Chapel was erected in 1853-54 for the McKillop Street independent congregation to
designs by pioneer Geelong architect Benjamin Backhouse. This stucco masonry structure was designed as a
preaching hall with a classically derived facade of most unusual proportions and detail and surmounted by a
restrained central pediment and parapet entablature. The building is one of the earliest surviving works of
Backhouse and has important links with the history of the Congregational Church of Victoria. The chapel is now
used as a dry cleaning works.

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Construction dates 1853, 

Architect/Designer Backhouse, Benjamin, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place, 

Other Names CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH,  

Hermes Number 3397

Property Number

https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
https://www.heritage.vic.gov.au/permits-and-approvals/heritage-permit-exemptions


Extent of Registration

AMENDMENT OF REGISTER OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS
Historic Building No. 1173:
Wintergarden, Former Congregational Chapel and Prefabricated Iron Building, 51 McKillop Street, Geelong, City
of Greater Geelong.
Extent:
To the extent of:
1. All of the building known as Wintergarden, the former Congregational Chapel and the prefabricated iron
building marked as B-1 on Plan 604435 endorsed by the Chairperson, Historic Buildings Council and held by the
Director, Historic Buildings Council.
2. All of the land described in Certificate of Title Volume 10051 Folio 923 marked L-1 on Plan 604435 endorsed
by the Chairperson, Historic Buildings Council and held by the Director, Historic Buildings Council.
[Victoria Government Gazette No. G15 18 April 1996 pp.961-962]

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

